
 

 August 10, 2023

Committees and 

Board Meeting 

Packet 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 

Prepared by: 

Tracy Byard 

Oceana County Administrator 

Today’s meetings 

begin at 10:00 a.m. 

Board of Commissioners 

Robert Walker, Chairperson Tim Beggs, Vice-Chairperson  

Craig Hardy   Phil Morse 

Paul Erickson 

1



PUBLIC NOTICE 
OCEANA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420 – (231) 873-4835 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners will hold the following committee meetings 

and its regular board meeting on Thursday, August 10, 2023 beginning at 10:00 a.m.

and 11:30 a.m. respectively.  The meetings will be held in the Oceana County Board of 

Commissioners Room located at 100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

• Courts and Public Safety Committee
• Finance and Administration Committee

• Regular Board of Commissioners Meeting

Detailed meeting agendas are available online at: 

https://oceana.mi.us/government/board-of-commissioners/schedule-of-meetings/ 

or, by contacting the County Administrator’s Office at the address shown above, by 

telephone (231) 873-4835, or by email countyadmin@oceana.mi.us 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners has cancelled the following meetings by order 

of the committee/board chairperson due to a lack of business: 

• Personnel and Health and Human Services Committee

All meetings are open to all members of the public. This notice is given pursuant to, and in accordance with, the 

provisions of the Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended.  Oceana County does not discriminate 

on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, and age in the delivery of services. 

2

https://oceana.mi.us/government/board-of-commissioners/schedule-of-meetings/
mailto:countyadmin@oceana.mi.us


AGENDA 

 Courts and Public Safety Committee 

There will be a committee meeting on Thursday, August 10, 2023 beginning at 10:00 a.m., or immediately 

following any preceding committee meetings, in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State 

Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Committee Chair:   Tim Beggs    Committee Vice-Chair:   Craig Hardy 

Presenter Description Item # 

Chairman Beggs Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes from July 13, 2023                                 Page 4
 Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adriana Facundo, 

District Court 

Magistrate 

District Court Overtime Request 

 

#2023-86 

Administrator 
Byard

HMEP FY 23-23 Grant Application 

Pages 5 - 28

#2023-87 

Jeff Stockhill, 

Director of North 

Operations Life 

EMS 

Life EMS Quarterly Report 

Pages 29 - 33

DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORT 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

3



UNOFFICIAL 

1 JULY 13, 2023 

Courts and Public Safety Committee 

The Courts and Public Safety Committee Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Beggs, on 

Thursday, July 13, 2023, at 10:01 a.m. in the Board Conference Room. 

Present: Mr. Erickson, Mr. Hardy, Mr. Walker, and Mr. Beggs. Absent: Mr. Morse. 

Also Present: Mr. Craig Mast, Oceana County Sheriff; Ms. Beth Pranger, Shelby Public School 

representative, Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator; Mr. Troy Maloney, Oceana County 

Emergency Manager; and Ms. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk. 

Moved by Mr. Hardy and seconded by Mr. Erickson to approve the minutes of the June 8, 2023, Courts 

and Public Safety Committee Meeting. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Beggs asked if there were any changes to the agenda. No changes were mentioned. 

Moved by Mr. Walker and seconded by Mr. Hardy to approve the agenda as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Agenda Items 

Sheriff Mast began discussion regarding the School Resource Officer (SRO) at Shelby Schools.  

Originally, the plan was to share the position with the officer assigned to Golden Township.  However, 

the Sheriff’s Department has been assisting with coverage in the Village of Shelby due to staffing 

shortages.  Therefore, it would be logistically advantageous for the position to be shared with the 

Village of Shelby.  Sheriff Mast introduced Ms. Pranger, a representative of Shelby Public School, (who 

also wrote the grant for this position) to answer any questions the Board may have. 

Department Head Reports 

Troy Maloney, Oceana County Emergency Manager, provided a report on the Electric Forest Festival. 

He stated that everything went very well with no major issues. The Police Chief, Emergency manager 

and command staff from Grand Valley State University as well as the Kent County Emergency Manager 

and Assistant Manager and the Oceana County Administrator were offered a tour of the unified 

command station at the festival. He stated that it is very rare for public agency partners with a private 

individual that works for a private company.  Those that toured the command station were very 

impressed with how Oceana County has managed this partnership. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Chairperson Beggs asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 10:21 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amy L. Anderson 

Oceana County Clerk 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



Life EMS Ambulance of Oceana County 
Ambulance Report 

April 1 through June 30, 2023 

At Life EMS, we consider it a privilege to serve the residents and visitors of Oceana 
County.  We thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent pre-hospital emergency 
care. 

During this reporting period, Life EMS completed 714 ambulance transports and on 
scene assessments in Oceana County.  This represents a decrease of 23 when 
compared to the same time-period last year.  

The Electric Forest Festival was held once again in June. With a considerable number 
of hours spent in planning and logistics by our local leadership, our EMS transport 
function of the event went quite smoothly, staffing remained a significant challenge. We 
had twenty-five 12-hour ambulance shifts to fill beginning June 20 and ending June 26. 
Montcalm County EMS once again partnered with us and covered 5 of the shifts. The 
remaining 20 were covered by Life EMS associates from every operation. The dry and 
dusty conditions at the venue contributed to a large number of respiratory distress 
events. On Thursday evening I received a call from National Event Services, the 
company that provides the onsite medical care and contracts with us for ambulances, 
stating that they had already used half of their oxygen supply. A call on Friday morning 
requested assistance for additional respiratory care equipment. We were able to secure 
10 nebulizer compressors from the Region 6 Healthcare Coalition and picked up an 
emergency supply of oxygen. The nebulizer compressors greatly reduced the 
consumption of oxygen. A total of 34 patients were transported from the event, 10 by 
Montcalm County and the remaining 24 by Life EMS. 

On May 6th West Shore Community College held a graduation ceremony for their EMS 
students. The college invited agencies to display their vehicles in the parking lot prior to 
the ceremony. Life EMS, as well as several other agencies in the region, supported the 
event with a large display of emergency vehicles.  

 National EMS week was celebrated May 21-27. It was our pleasure to recognize the 
efforts of our Oceana County staff, and their families, by holding a cookout for the EMS 
Week dinner. By popular request, Jim and I fired up our smokers and prepared ribs and 
pulled pork, something the associates anticipate every year. Once again, we had a very 
good turnout of staff and their families for this event. Three of our vice presidents also 
attended. Our local supervisors prepared a large breakfast and bought lunches on a few 
days as well. Our associates expressed appreciation to the leadership team for serving 
them during the week. Additionally, each associate received a Life EMS 
commemorative shirt as a small token of appreciation for their dedication.  

There were 13 requests for fire standbys during this reporting period totaling nearly 14 
hours of coverage for the health and safety of local firefighters. 

29



Thank you for allowing us to serve the residents, visitors, and families of Oceana 
County.   

Respectfully submitted, 
Jeff Stockhill 
Director of North Operations 
Life EMS Ambulance 

30



Power BI Desktop

Transport Disposition MED 1 MED 2 MED 3 Total

Cancelled Prior to Arrival 10 14 9 33
On Scene No Need 15 15 33 63
On Scene Treat No Transport 44 18 41 103
Transport Priority 1 2 2
Transport Priority 2/3 259 49 174 482
Total 327 96 257 680

Response
Plan

0 - 2
Minutes

2 - 4
Minutes

4 - 6
Minutes

6 - 8
Minutes

8 - 10
Minutes

10 - 12
Minutes

12 - 14
Minutes

14 - 16
Minutes

16 - 18
Minutes

18 - 20
Minutes

20 - 22
Minutes

22 - 24
Minutes

24 - 26
Minutes

26 - 28
Minutes

28 - 30
Minutes

30 - 32
Minutes

32 - 34
Minutes

34+
Minutes

Exemptions Total

MED 1 6 26 48 38 37 48 36 32 6 13 6 4 3 1 14 317
MED 2 1 5 13 9 5 5 6 3 7 10 3 6 4 1 2 1 1 82
MED 3 29 10 29 18 22 19 23 28 15 10 15 7 5 5 7 1 3 2 248

Emergency Response Detail

339

99

258

MED 1

MED 2

MED 3

Transport Disposition Detail

Cancelled Prior to
Arrival

On Scene No Need On Scene Treat No
Transport

Transport Priority 1 Transport Priority 2/3

35
64

104

2

491

MED 1 Response Target

15 Minutes
MED 1 Compliance

89%

04/01/2023 06/30/2023

This document has been created, obtained and collected by the Quality Improvement Committee assigned a Professional review function for Life EMS and any of our affiliated companies, medical control boards and agents. All records, data and knowledge collected for or by individuals assigned to this professional review function are confidential and shall 

not be made public, nor available for subpoena and are protected from disclosure pursuant to Michigan law, including the statutory provisions of MCL 333.20175, MCL 333.21515, 333.531-534, MCL 333.21513, 333.21515, 330.1143a, 331.531 and 331.533. Unauthorized use, disclosure and/or duplication is prohibited.

Life EMS Ambulance of Oceana County
For the Period Beginning                      and Ending                     

Response Information

MED 1 Average

0:10:37

31



Power BI Desktop

Id

 

Community Date Respons
e Priority

CallTime Response
Time

Notes

3658149 Newfield Township 04/01/2023 MED 1 14:28:38 00:19:54 101 er from Fremont. 834 and 835 both on calls.
3658751 City of Hart 04/02/2023 MED 1 12:46:39 00:16:56 835 should have been on time- crew delay en route
3658925 Newfield Township 04/02/2023 MED 1 20:10:23 00:19:20 **Exemption Request- Distance** 101 resp from station 1, 835 on call, mulitple open shifts in Oceana County, 104 on call, 106 on

call, Medic 1 at Mason/Oceana line
3659238 Ferry Township 04/03/2023 MED 1 03:53:25 00:23:19
3660670 Greenwood Township 04/04/2023 MED 1 14:41:07 00:19:01 **Exemption Request- Distance** Truck coming from: Shelby;Staffed trucks: 3;Planned trucks: 3;Busy trucks: 1;
3662034 Colfax Township 04/06/2023 MED 1 00:55:06 00:27:51 833 resp from Hart station, 834 on call, 835 on call
3663758 Crystal Township 04/07/2023 MED 1 15:36:41 00:21:40 Truck coming from: Hart ;Staffed trucks: 3 ;Planned trucks: 3 ;Busy trucks: 2 ;
3666546 Leavitt Township 04/11/2023 MED 1 03:01:02 00:24:38 **Exemption Request- Distance**
3670353 Greenwood Township 04/14/2023 MED 1 10:45:26 00:22:52 **Exemption Request- Distance** 101 resp from station 1
3670619 Otto Township 04/14/2023 MED 1 14:10:08 00:18:19 832 resp from the shelby station
3676731 Newfield Township 04/20/2023 MED 1 21:24:31 00:18:18 832 coming from shelby station - 831 out of service 1/2 crew - 834 at hart station ;
3677759 Newfield Township 04/21/2023 MED 1 19:59:21 00:18:57 **Exemption Request- Distance** Truck coming from: Medic 832 coming from Shelby;Staff trucks: 3;Planned trucks: 3;Busy trucks:

0;Supv in or out of plan: out;Neo: n/a
3678787 Otto Township 04/23/2023 MED 1 08:31:28 00:29:33 coming from Hart, both trucks in Shelby are 10-7
3682630 Ferry Township 04/27/2023 MED 1 23:12:13 00:20:01 834 responded from hart, 835 was on a call, 832 wsa also at stn in hart, distance and status
3683017 Newfield Township 04/28/2023 MED 1 09:24:42 00:21:35 **Exemption Request- Distance** 835 closest to call- per policy, needs to be oceana unit d/t being above the white river
3685912 Crystal Township 05/01/2023 MED 1 16:14:40 00:22:55 Truck coming from: Hart ;Staffed trucks: 3 ;Planned trucks: 3 ;Busy trucks: 1
3687729 Grant Township 05/03/2023 MED 1 15:57:09 00:17:29 834 er from Hart. 2 car status. 835 returning from muskegon ;
3687837 Leavitt Township 05/03/2023 MED 1 18:40:18 00:18:20 832 resp from hart station, 834 at hart station, 835 at shelby station
3688056 Colfax Township 05/04/2023 MED 1 08:05:43 00:19:05
3689627 Elbridge Township 05/05/2023 MED 1 22:34:33 00:18:36 832 coming from hart station - 833 at hart base - 835 @ shelby
3692296 Newfield Township 05/08/2023 MED 1 23:54:22 00:24:13 **Exemption Request- Distance** 835 coming from shelby;
3696658 Golden Township 05/13/2023 MED 1 12:34:45 00:18:09 coming from shelby station, hart unit on call.
3701806 Hart Township 05/18/2023 MED 1 20:57:46 00:21:32 Truck coming from: Medic 101 coming from Hesperia ;Staff trucks: 3 ;Planned trucks: 3 ;Busy trucks: 3 ;Supv in or out of plan: in

plan ;Neo: n/a ;
3702400 Newfield Township 05/19/2023 MED 1 10:45:53 00:20:48 **Exemption Request- Distance** Truck coming from: Shelby;Staffed trucks: 2;Planned trucks: 3;Busy trucks: 2
3704125 Grant Township 05/21/2023 MED 1 11:43:21 00:20:41 833 RES from Station, 3/3 trucks staffed, 3/3 trucks available

04/01/2023 06/30/2023
Life EMS Ambulance of Oceana County

For the Period Beginning                      and Ending                     
Calls for Service With Response Time Falling Outside of MCA Guidelines

This document has been created, obtained and collected by the Quality Improvement Committee assigned a Professional review function for Life EMS and any of our affiliated companies, medical control boards and agents. All records, data and knowledge collected for or by individuals assigned to this professional review function are confidential and shall not be made public, nor 

available for subpoena and are protected from disclosure pursuant to Michigan law, including the statutory provisions of MCL 333.20175, MCL 333.21515, 333.531-534, MCL 333.21513, 333.21515, 330.1143a, 331.531 and 331.533. Unauthorized use, disclosure and/or duplication is prohibited.32



Power BI Desktop

04/01/2023 06/30/2023
Life EMS Ambulance of Oceana County

For the Period Beginning                      and Ending                     
Calls for Service With Response Time Falling Outside of MCA Guidelines

This document has been created, obtained and collected by the Quality Improvement Committee assigned a Professional review function for Life EMS and any of our affiliated companies, medical control boards and agents. All records, data and knowledge collected for or by individuals assigned to this professional review function are confidential and shall not be made public, nor 

available for subpoena and are protected from disclosure pursuant to Michigan law, including the statutory provisions of MCL 333.20175, MCL 333.21515, 333.531-534, MCL 333.21513, 333.21515, 330.1143a, 331.531 and 331.533. Unauthorized use, disclosure and/or duplication is prohibited.

Id

 

Community Date Respons
e Priority

CallTime Response
Time

Notes

3709081 Otto Township 05/26/2023 MED 1 11:31:39 00:16:51
3709104 Shelby Township 05/26/2023 MED 1 11:50:38 00:20:56 **Exemption Request-System Overload**medic 3 enroute from ludington. no oceana units avail
3713158 Newfield Township 05/30/2023 MED 1 23:32:37 00:17:55 **Exemption Request- Distance** 833 responded from shelby, both trucks at hart stn., distance
3713649 Otto Township 05/31/2023 MED 1 13:10:02 00:19:41
3714148 Otto Township 06/01/2023 MED 1 00:14:24 00:22:21 833 coming from shelby station - 831 & 834 at hart station
3714152 Ferry Township 06/01/2023 MED 1 00:36:52 00:20:49 834 coming from hart- 833 already on a call in Sheby area - 831 at hart station -
3716305 Golden Township 06/02/2023 MED 1 22:48:06 00:16:33 Truck coming from: 834 coming from Hart Station ;Staff trucks: 3 ;Planned trucks: 3 ;Busy trucks: 2 ;Supv in or out of plan: in plan

;Neo: n/a
3717800 Newfield Township 06/04/2023 MED 1 14:48:13 00:29:15 **Exemption Request- Distance**
3718331 Otto Township 06/05/2023 MED 1 07:02:33 00:19:41
3724353 Golden Township 06/10/2023 MED 1 16:46:56 00:18:41 At Scene time per EPCR-MW OC level 2. 835 er from Shelby
3724365 City of Hart 06/10/2023 MED 1 17:04:46 00:22:26 **Exemption Request-System Overload**
3726428 Grant Township 06/12/2023 MED 1 22:51:05 00:22:42 Truck coming from: Medic 833 coming from Hart ;Staff trucks: 3 ;Planned trucks: 3 ;Busy trucks: 2 ;Supv in or out of plan: out ;Neo:

n/a ; ;
3726440 Newfield Township 06/12/2023 MED 1 23:07:03 00:18:18 **Exemption Request- Distance** Truck coming from: Medic 101 coming from Fremont;Staff trucks: 3;Planned trucks: 3;Busy

trucks: 2;Supv in or out of plan: out;Neo: n/a;
3728413 Newfield Township 06/14/2023 MED 1 19:52:24 00:16:23 **Exemption Request- Distance** per policy, N of the river, should go to oceana unit. distance
3730888 Leavitt Township 06/17/2023 MED 1 04:50:21 00:19:05
3733529 Grant Township 06/20/2023 MED 1 01:30:47 00:18:13 2/3 trucks staffed, 835 responding from hart, 831 on a call
3734265 Pentwater Township 06/20/2023 MED 1 21:00:31 00:16:36
3735514 Leavitt Township 06/22/2023 MED 1 05:27:23 00:26:33 3/3 trucks staffed, 835 RES from Station
3736302 Grant Township 06/22/2023 MED 1 19:51:35 00:19:00 truck coming from hart, closest truck avail, shelby truck not avail as not full crew
3736305 Grant Township 06/22/2023 MED 1 19:52:49 00:19:00 truck coming from hart, closest truck avail, shelby truck not avail as not full crew
3737547 Ferry Township 06/23/2023 MED 1 23:37:17 00:21:54
3739472 Greenwood Township 06/26/2023 MED 1 04:31:52 00:26:01
3742781 Grant Township 06/29/2023 MED 1 12:34:43 00:17:32 Truck coming from: Hart ;Staff trucks:3 ;Planned trucks:3 ;Busy trucks:2 ;Supv in or out of plan: yes ;Neo: no

33



AGENDA 

 Finance and Administration Committee 

There will be a committee meeting on Thursday, August 10, 2023 beginning at 10:00 a.m., or immediately 

following any preceding committee meetings, in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State 

Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Committee Chair: Craig Hardy        Committee Vice-Chair: Tim Beggs 

Presenter Description Motion # 

Chairman Hardy Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of Meeting Minutes from July 27, 2023                     Pages 35 - 39 

Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Commissioner 

Robert Walker 

 Blight Elimination Grant Round 3 #2023-88 

Administrator 

Byard 

 Juneteenth Discussion #2023-89 

Administrator 

Byard 

Administrator’s Review of Selected Claims for Payment   Pages 40 - 41

Administrator’s Report     Pages 42 & 43

#2023-90 

DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORT 

Public Comment (state name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

34



UNOFFICIAL 

1 JULY 27, 2023 

Finance and Administration Committee 

The Finance and Administration Committee Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Hardy on 

Thursday, July 27, 2023, at 10:23 a.m., in the Board Conference Room. 

Present: Mr. Erickson, Mr. Morse, Mr. Beggs, Mr. Walker, and Mr. Hardy. 

Also Present: Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator; Mr. Kevyn Kozumplik, Auditor, Gabridge & 

Company (via Zoom); Ms. Jennifer Martin, Brown & Brown Insurance; Mr. James Tiffany, JE Tiffany & 

Sons, LLC (via Zoom); Ms. Mary Lou Phillips, Oceana County Treasurer; Mr. Garry McKeen, Oceana 

County Parks & Recreation Commission; Mr. John Cavanagh, Oceana’s Herald-Journal correspondent; 

Ms. Stacia Erickson, The Oceana Echo, correspondent; and Ms. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk 

Moved by Mr. Hardy and supported by Mr. Walker to approve the minutes of the May 25, 2023 Finance 

and Administration Committee 

Voice vote.  Motion carried. 

Chairperson Hardy asked if there were any additions to the agenda. No additions were mentioned. 

Moved by Mr. Morris and seconded by Mr. Beggs to approve the agenda as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Agenda Items 

Mr. Kevyn Kozumplik, CPA Manager, presented the County FY2022 Audit.  Mr. Kozumplik reported 

there were no deficient funds or budget deficiencies to report to the state. 

Ms. Jennifer Martin from Brown and Brown provided a health insurance update. 

Mr. Curtis Burdette was not available to provide his presentation of the workforce development grant, 

but notified Ms. Byard that he would like to reschedule to provide the presentation at another time. 

Commissioner Erickson began discussion regarding the remaining engineering fees for the Crystal 

Valley Dam and introduce Mr. Tiffany who was in attendance via zoom.   

Discussion continued regarding the scope/intent and extent of services and the fees for services 

performed. 

Ms. Byard did not read the claims for payment, but the following was provided: 

Oceana County Administrator 

REVIEW OF CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT (>= $1,000 and Other Noteworthy Expenditures) 

Fund # Dept. # Dept. Name Amount Purpose 

Special Revenue 

Funds 

210 - Ambulance  $     3,960.00 

to Ferry Township Fire 

Department  

35



UNOFFICIAL 

2 JULY 27, 2023 

 $    10,890.00 

to Grant Township Fire 

Department 

 $     6,490.00 

to Shelby/Benona Fire 

Department 

 $     4,070.00 

to Walkerville Fire 

Department  

215 - Friend of the Court  $     2,194.06 

to Image Soft for 

professional services and 

icloud storage 

256 - Automation Fund R.O.D  $     2,074.80 

to GovOS, Inc for software 

fees.  

260 - Indigent Defense Fund  $     1,550.00 

to Envista Forensics for 

professional services.  

 $     6,247.00 

to Good Law for court 

appointed attorney fees. 

 $     5,625.00 

to Indigent Defense 

Consultants for managed 

assigned counsel services. 

 $     8,672.00 

to Springstead Law Offices 

for court appointed attorney 

fees. 

 $     6,696.20 

to Hayes Law Office, PLC for 

court appointed attorney 

fees.  

286 - ARPA  $    50,900.00 

to G Freeland Roofing for 

new roof on health 

department  

 $    21,853.00 

To Berger Chevrolet for new 

County Car. 

298 - Tech and Innovation  $     5,250.00 

to Alertus for professional 

services and technology 

support.  

549 - Building Department Fund  $     2,786.80 

to Randy Miller for permits, 

residential plan reviews, and 

commercial plan reviews. 

 $     2,320.90 

to Randy Neuman for 

permits, residential plan 

reviews, and commercial 

plan reviews. 

 $     1,050.00 

to Thomas Story for permits, 

residential plan reviews, and 

commercial plan reviews. 

36



UNOFFICIAL 

3 JULY 27, 2023 

General Fund 

101- BOC  $     6,008.21 

to H Security & Investigation 

for courthouse security for 

June 2023 and May 2023 

OT.  

 $     3,421.20 

to Cohl, Stoker & Toskey, 

P.C. for legal services.

172 - Administration  $     5,973.33 

to TASC for August thru 

October 2023 COBRA 

payment. 

223 - County Auditing  $    26,700.00 

to Gabridge & Company, PLC 

for 2022 financial statement 

audit report.  

257 - Equalization  $    18,150.00 

to V&V Assessing for 

equalization and assessing 

services July 2023. 

 $    18,150.00 

to V&V Assessing for 

equalization and assessing 

services August 2023. 

283 - Circuit Court   $     3,086.15 

to the State of Michigan for 

JIS Fees 

286 - District Court  $     1,000.00 

to Kathy Fuehring for 

Interpreter Fees.  

 $     3,106.80 

to the State of Michigan for 

JIS Fees 

294 - Probate Court  $     3,188.83 

to the State of Michigan for 

JIS Fees 

296 - Prosecuting Attorney  $     4,193.00 

to PAAM for software 

maintenance contract. 

301 - Sheriff  $     1,215.53 to AT&T mobility 

 $    19,388.30 

to Enterprise for fleet vehicle 

management.  

 $     1,704.00 

to EPS Security for security 

system 

37



UNOFFICIAL 

4 JULY 27, 2023 

351 - Jail  $     1,317.39 to Gordon Food Service. 

 $     4,250.38 to City of Hart for utilities 

 $     6,490.00 

to ID Networks for service 

contract on fingerprinting 

system. 

528 - Transfer Station  $    20,389.05 

to American Classic 

Dumpster for removal of 

trash and recycling material. 

 $     2,649.02 

to CAT for repairs on the 

420E 

595 - Airport  $     1,425.00 

to QT Petroleum on Demand 

for Annual Agreement. 

601 - Health Department  $     5,300.00 

to DHD#10 for monthly 

lease payment. 

 $    42,788.75 

to DHD#10 for 2023 

appropriation. 

649 - Mental Health  $    10,833.13 

to West Michigan 

Community Mental Health. 

~ Total  $  342,524.70 

Administrator’s Report (as provided by Ms. Byard): 

BUDGET TRAINING 

Budget Trainings are being held to provide instruction on the budget module of BS&A.  Our first 

two trainings were held on Friday, July 21, 2023.  We had a good turn out and was informed that the 

process seems very simple.  Our I.T. has had to make some changes to securities to allow employees 

to access their budget(s) and that is being done.  Once that is complete, there shouldn’t be issues 

with access.  This process should make things run smoother and will also allow the budget to be 

printed with footnotes making explanations for some items self-explanatory for the Board members. 

LOCAL ASSISTANCE AND TRIBAL CONSITENCY FUND 

An email was received today informing us that a second tranche of LATCF will be coming to us 

in the amount of $105,271.91.  The affirmation needed to be submitted and that was processed.  The 

documents take approximately four days to review and we should be receiving those funds shortly 

after that time. 

OPIOD MEETINGS 

The Michigan Association of Counties will be holding monthly opioid meetings.  I attended the 

first meeting and it was extremely helpful.  They are scheduling counties to do presentations on 

programs they have put in place with the opioid monies.  The information will be shared with the 

opioid committee as well as the Board of Commissioners. 

38



UNOFFICIAL 

5 JULY 27, 2023 

PERSONNEL POLICY 

The personnel policy was forwarded to the County Attorney.  They did make changes and send 

back.  The policy has been forwarded on to the Personnel Committee as well as Jessica LaPointe to 

review and make suggestions.  They noted that there were duplications and suggested removing 

those. 

GRANT OPPORTUNITY 

We received a notification for a grant opportunity in the amount of up to $2.5 million dollars.  

The Michigan Community Center Grant is for investing in people and revitalize places for use on 

programs and capital projects.  The capital projects include remodeling, purchasing equipment, 

installing energy efficient heating and cooling, renewable energy, weatherizing, roofs and windows 

and updating recreational fields.  There has recently been discussion pertaining to generators and I 

would like to apply for generators for each of the building as well as roof and window replacement for 

the County Services Building.  If the Board has other items in mind, please let me know.  

Additional Administrator’s Report Items 

Ms. Byard related that she received notification of additional opioid funds $170,000 will be received 

over 15 years.  

She also notified the Board that there is a grant for weathering facilities that she is looking into.  

Ms. Byard also mentioned that she attended the MTA meeting last night. 

Department Head Reports 

There were no department head reports at this time. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Chairperson Hardy asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 12:07 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amy L. Anderson 

Oceana County Clerk 

39



Fund # Dept. # Dept. Name Amount Purpose

Special Revenue Funds

6,710.00$          to Pentwater Fire Department 

2,394.32$          
to Oceana County Firefighters for 
reimbursement for equipment

3,890.56$          
to Randy Miller for permits, residential plan 
reviews, and commercial plan reviews.

3,353.35$          
to Randy Neuman for permits, residential 
plan reviews, and commercial plan reviews.

1,458.41$          
to Sonnie Smith for permits, residential plan 
reviews, and commercial plan reviews.

8,522.22$          to MAC for Dues.

2,074.54$          
to Spectrum Printers for new Oceana 
County Directory's. 

3,697.68$          to City of Hart for utilities

1,125.00$          
to Barkow Law company for second quarter 
conservator fees. 

 $          2,598.27 
to Cardmember Services for employee 
travel and contractual services.

2,870.41$          
to Walicki's A-1 Autobody for vehicle 
repairs/maintenance

9,027.67$          to Wex Bank for fuel. 

3,135.75$          to Gordon Food Service.
4,496.02$          to City of Hart for utilities
1,166.10$          to X-cel Chemical for janitorial supplies. 

15,284.39$        
to Advanced Correctional Healthcare for on-
site medical services per contract.

265 - Courthouse & Grounds

294 - Probate Court

301 - Sheriff

351 - Jail 

286 - ARPA

549 - Building Department Fund

General Fund

101- BOC

Oceana County Administrator
REVIEW OF CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT (>= $1,000 and Other Noteworthy Expenditures)

210 - Ambulance

40



2,426.04$          
to Oceana Veterinary Clinic for veterinary 
expenses

1,097.03$          to Consumers Energy for utilities. 

6,765.00$          to WMU Homer Stryker for autopsies. 

~ Total 82,092.76$        

430 - Animal Control 

601 - Health Department

648 - Medical Examiner

41



COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
AUGUST 10, 2023 

BUDGET TRAINING 

The remaining budget trainings were held.  Some budgets have already been 

turned in and we have started our process preparing for presenting information to the 

Board of Commissioners at the meeting scheduled for September 28th.  

PERSONNEL POLICY 

The personnel policy is being reviewed by myself and Jessica to provide a final 

draft to the Personnel Committee for review. 

GRANT OPPORTUNITY 

As stated at the previous meeting, we received a notification for a grant 

opportunity in the amount of up to $2.5 million dollars.  The Michigan Community 

Center Grant is for investing in people and revitalize places for use on programs and 

capital projects.  The capital projects include remodeling, purchasing equipment, 

installing energy efficient heating and cooling, renewable energy, weatherizing, roofs 

and windows and updating recreational fields.  There has recently been discussion 

pertaining to generators and I would like to apply for generators for each of the building 

as well as roof and window replacement for the County Services Building. Bryan is 

gathering quotes for the items mentioned along with fixtures within the jail.  We are 

exploring the possibility of a grant writer that works for another governmental 

organization to write the grant and submission with our assistance.  

MAC UPDATE 

The MAC Conference will be held October 1st – 3rd if any of the Board members are 

interested in attending.  Please let me know so we may get that registration in.   

There have been several items discussed as it relates to the State budget.  The state court 

system fee that has been paid by counties is being eliminated.  I am looking to see what 

that cost was for us.  Counties have been paying this fee for over 30 years resulting in 

$4 to $6 million annually that has been paid to the state. 

42



COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
AUGUST 10, 2023 

WEST CENTRAL MICHIGAN COUNTY ALLIANCE MEETING 

The West Central Michigan County Alliance Meeting was held on Monday, July 31st in 

Big Rapids.  MAC was in attendance announced that MAC MML and MTA have 

agreed to the creation of a revenue sharing trust fund for statutory revenue sharing for 

counties, cities, villages and townships and fund it through a carve out of the State’s 

sales tax revenue.  It would include 8% or the first 4% points of the State sales tax to 

fund the Trust Fund and it would bring back townships that lost out on revenue sharing 

over the past 2 decades.  There has been a hearing in the House local government 

showing significant support and they expect movement on this in the fall.   

HB 4317 & 4318, sponsored by Representative Vanderwall and Representative Neeley 

have passed and have been sent to the Governor for a signature.  These are relating to 

solar PILT.  These bills were also discussed in a presentation at the MTA meeting.   

House Bills 4624-4643 and Senate Bills 418-437 are expected to go through the House 

Criminal Justice and Senate Civil Rights, Judiciary and Public Safety Committees to 

address and increase reimbursement from 50-75% for community base services, 

evidence-based practices and expansion of risk and mental health screenings. 

HB 4479 is being discussed for a statewide septic code as Michigan is the only state 

without one.  A bill will pass but there needs to be some compromise. 

A presentation was held by the Area Agency on Aging of Western Michigan providing 

information on their services. 

43



AGENDA 

Regular Board Meeting 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners will hold its Regular Meeting on Thursday, August 10, 2023 

beginning at 11:30 a.m. in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Board Chair: Robert Walker    Board Vice-Chair:  Tim Beggs 

Presenter Description Item # 

Chair 

11:30 a.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

PUBLIC HEARING – SHELBY ACRES PARCELTO BE ANNEXED TO 

VILLAGE OF SHELBY 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of minutes from July 27, 2023                                     Pages 46 - 48 

Conflict of Interest Disclosure Regarding Agenda Items 

Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Commissioner 

Morse 

Annexation of Land to the Village of Shelby 

Motion #2023-91, to adopt Resolution #23-09 including Exhibits A and B 

annexing lands to the Village of Shelby resulting in lands to be included within 

the corporate limits of the Village of Shelby. 

  Roll Call 

#2023-91 

Commissioner 

Hardy 

District Court Request for Overtime - TBD #2023-86 

Commissioner 

Beggs 

HMEP Planning Grant 

Motion #2023-87, to approve the HMEP Planning Grant Agreement for 

Emergency Management in the amount of $6,960.00 and allow the Chair to sign. 

  Roll Call       

#2023-87 

Commissioner 

Erickson 

Blight Elimination Grant 

Motion #2023-88, to accept the $500,000 Blight Elimination Grant award for the 

Land Bank Authority and allow Chair to sign. 

  Roll Call 

#2023-88 

Commissioner 

Morse 

Juneteenth 

Motion #2023-89 to amend Section 6.22 of the Oceana County Policy Handbook 

to add Juneteenth to the list of paid holidays which are observed and payable to 

employees during applicable pay periods. 

  Roll Call 

#2023-89 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

44



Page 2 

Presenter Description Item # 

Commissioner 

Hardy 

Payment of Claims #2023-90 

REPORTS FROM COMMISSIONERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

45

Pages 49 & 57



UNOFFICIAL

1 JULY 27, 2023 

Board Conference Room 
July 27, 2023 
Board of Commissioners Minutes 

The regular meeting of the Oceana County Board of Commissioners was called to order by Chairperson 

Walker, on Thursday, July 27, 2023, at 12:15 p.m. 

Chairperson Walker led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 

America. 

Roll was called by Clerk Anderson. Present: Mr. Erickson, Mr. Morse, Mr. Beggs, Mr. Hardy, and Mr. 

Walker.  

Also Present: Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator, Mr. F. Lee Hyslop, Crystal Township 

Supervisor; Mr. John Cavanagh, Oceana’s Herald-Journal correspondent; Ms. Stacia Erickson, The 

Oceana Echo, correspondent;  and Ms. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk. 

Moved by Mr. Hardy and seconded by Mr. Morse to approve the minutes from the July 13, 2023 Regular 

Board Meeting as amended. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Walker asked if any commissioners wished to declare any conflicts of interest on the 

agenda items. No conflicts were declared. 

Chairperson Walker asked if there were any additions to the agenda. No additions were mentioned. 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and supported by Mr. Hardy to approve the agenda as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

Mr. Hyslop, Crystal Township Supervisor provided a report on Crystal Township and the many projects 

going on in the area.  He stated that good progress is being made. 

Agenda Items 

MOTION #2023-82 –PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT 

Moved by Mr. Morse and supported by Mr. Beggs to approve a three-year preventative maintenance 

contract from Martech Enterprise for air conditioning, heating, ventilation and refrigeration systems 

for all county buildings for a total amount of $18,921.12. 

Roll call vote: Mr. Morse – Yes; Mr. Hardy – Yes; Mr. Beggs – Yes; Mr. Erickson – Yes; and 

Mr. Walker – Yes. 

Motion carried. 

Mr. Morse indicated three bids are required, but only one was received. 

MOTION #2023-84– BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Hardy to approve budget adjustments #06-2023 in the 

amount $4,126,567, #07-2023 in the amount of $18,255 and #08-2023 in the amount of $29,000 to 

correct various lines throughout the budget 

Roll call vote: Mr. Beggs –Yes; Mr. Hardy –Yes; Mr. Morse –Yes; Mr. Erickson –Yes; and 

46



  UNOFFICIAL 

2 JULY 27, 2023 

 

Mr. Walker –Yes.  

 

 Motion carried. 

 

MOTION #2023-83 – APPROVAL OF ENGINEERING FEES 

 

 Moved by Mr. Erickson and supported by Mr. Morse to approve the professional services 

agreement with Mr. James Tiffany son in the amount of $24,775 for the Crystal Valley Dam 

Remediation Project with $22,375 to be paid with ARPA funds and allow the chair to sign. 

 

 Roll call vote: Mr. Erickson - Yes; Mr. Morse - Yes; Mr. Hardy -Yes; Mr. Beggs – Yes; and Mr.  

                               Walker - Yes. 

 

 Motion carried. 

 

There was some discussion regarding the cost of repairs.   

 

MOTION #2023-85 – PAYMENT OF CLAIMS 

  

Moved by Mr. Hardy and supported by Mr. Morse to approve the payment of accounts payable and 

release of funds for June 8, 2023. 

 

AMBULANCE  $25,462.37 

GIS    -0- 

FOC  2,194.06 

PENTWATER-HART TRAIL      -0- 

SHELBY TWP COMM PARK  -0- 

BROWNFIELD    -0- 

AUTOMATION R.O.D.    2,074.80 

INDIGENT DEFENSE  35,605.81 

LCOT    -0- 

K9 UNIT 

CJT 

 -0- 

200.00 

CDBG    -0- 

ARPA  72,799.50 

VETERANS AFFAIRS  7,594.09 

TECH & INNOVATION  7,537.56 

CAPITAL PROG/EQUIP REP  -0- 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT    -0- 

FORECLOSURE    -0- 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT  13,286.80 

GENERAL FUND  687,432.04 

 GRAND TOTAL $854,187.03 

 

 

Roll call vote: Mr. Hardy – Yes; Mr. Morse – Yes; Mr. Erickson – Yes; Mr. Beggs – Yes; and  

                     Mr. Walker – Yes.  

 

Motion carried. 

 

Commissioner’s Reports 

 

Mr. Morse suggested the Board consider using ARPA funds for Parks & Recreation for labor and 

maintenance.   

 

Mr. Erickson reported that the medical care is at a 78-bed occupancy. There will be a meeting Tuesday, 

August 1 to discuss the grant for the air purification system.  He also stated that the Hart Dental Clinic 

still does not have a dentist.   

 

Mr. Beggs commented that the Pizza Factory was hit by lightning and burned.   

47



  UNOFFICIAL 

3 JULY 27, 2023 

 

 

Mr. Hardy stated 911 board meeting was cancelled and re-scheduled for next month. 

 

 

Public Comment 

 

There were no public comments at this time. 

 

Chairperson Walker asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 1:04 p.m. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Amy L.  Anderson, Oceana County Clerk 

 

 

_______________________________   _______________________________ 

Date        Mr. Walker, Chairperson 

48



FUND DEPT # DEPARTMENT PR# PAID UNPAID TOTAL
210 AMBULANCE 15 1,817.71$                       6,710.00$                     8,527.71$                         

AMBULANCE FUND TOTAL 1,817.71$                       6,710.00$                     8,527.71$                         
211 GIS -$                                -$                              -$                                 

GIS FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
215 FOC -$                                -$                                 

FOC PAYROLL 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
FOC FICA 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
FOC RETIREMENT 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
FOC FRINGE 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
WORKERS COMP 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

FOC FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
238 PENTWATER-HART TRAIL 388.77$                          -$                              388.77$                            

PENTWATER-HART TRAIL FUND TOTAL 388.77$                          -$                              388.77$                            
239 SHELBY TWP COMMUNITY PARK -$                                -$                              -$                                 

SHELBY TWP COMMUNITY PARK FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
243 BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 639.90$                          -$                              639.90$                            

           BROWNFIELD REDEVELOP. AUTHORITY TOTAL 639.90$                          -$                              639.90$                            
256 AUTOMATION R.O.D. -$                                -$                                 

AUTOMATION R.O.D. FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
260 INDIGENT DEFENSE 1,548.46$                       190.65$                        1,739.11$                         

INDIGENT DEFENSE PAYROLL 15 2,134.29$                       -$                              2,134.29$                         
INDIGENT DEFENSE FICA 15 163.27$                          -$                              163.27$                            
INDIGENT DEFENSE RETIREMENT 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
INDIGENT DEFENSE FRINGE 15 1,617.37$                       -$                              1,617.37$                         
WORKERS COMP 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

INDIGENT DEFENSE FUND TOTAL 5,463.39$                       190.65$                        5,654.04$                         
264 LCOT -$                                -$                                 

LCOT PAYROLL 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
LCOT FICA 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
LCOT RETIREMENT 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
WORKERS COMP 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
RETIREMENT 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

LOCT FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
267 K9 UNIT 228.98$                          228.98$                            

K9 UNIT FUND 228.98$                          -$                              228.98$                            
272 CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING -$                                290.00$                        290.00$                            

CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING FUND TOTAL -$                                290.00$                        290.00$                            
277 CDBG -$                                -$                              -$                                 

CDBG FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
286 ARPA 2,394.32$                       2,394.32$                         

APRA FUND TOTAL 2,394.32$                       -$                              2,394.32$                         
293 DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS 13.00$                            13.00$                              

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS PAYROLL 15 2,924.12$                       -$                              2,924.12$                         
DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FICA 15 129.57$                          -$                              129.57$                            
DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS RETIREMENT 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

Board Approval of Accounts Payable & Release of Funds
 FOR 8/10/2023

49



DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FRINGE 15 1,606.46$                       -$                              1,606.46$                         
WORKERS COMP 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FUND TOTAL 4,673.15$                       -$                              4,673.15$                         
298 TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION 958.36$                          520.37$                        1,478.73$                         

TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION FUND TOTAL 958.36$                          520.37$                        1,478.73$                         
405 CAPITAL PROJ-EQUIP REPLACE -$                                -$                                 

CAPITAL PROJ-EQUIP REPLACE FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
445 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT FUND TOTAL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
549 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 10,502.32$                     8.49$                            10,510.81$                       

BUILDING DEPARTMENT PAYROLL 15 2,258.12$                       -$                              2,258.12$                         
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FICA 15 169.20$                          -$                              169.20$                            
BUILDING DEPARTMENT RETIREMENT 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FRINGE 15 2,878.28$                       -$                              2,878.28$                         
WORKERS COMP 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND TOTAL 15,807.92$                     8.49$                            15,816.41$                       
101 GENERAL FUND PR# PAID UNPAID TOTAL

101 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 15.72$                            10,619.51$                   10,635.23$                       
172 ADMINISTRATOR/FISCAL OFFICER -$                                218.45$                        218.45$                            
208 INSURANCE 431.82$                          431.82$                            
209 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 
215 COUNTY CLERK -$                                98.64$                          98.64$                              
216 JURY BOARD -$                                -$                              -$                                 
217 APPORTIONMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 
223 COUNTY AUDITING -$                                -$                              -$                                 
228 DATA PROCESSING -$                                136.64$                        136.64$                            
229 TECHNOLOGY -$                                -$                              -$                                 
244 TAX ALLOCATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 
245 REMONUMENTATION -$                                -$                              -$                                 
248 GENERAL SERVICES 635.31$                          173.48$                        808.79$                            
249 PLAT BOARD -$                                -$                              -$                                 
250 MICROFILM -$                                -$                              -$                                 
253 COUNTY TREASURER 101.27$                          110.70$                        211.97$                            
257 EQUALIZATION -$                                -$                                 
262 ELECTIONS 1,342.50$                       1,342.50$                         
265 COURTHOUSE/GROUNDS 3,803.90$                       422.10$                        4,226.00$                         
283 CIRCUIT COURT 159.00$                          1,257.95$                     1,416.95$                         
286 DISTRICT COURT 537.00$                          336.56$                        873.56$                            
289 FRIEND OF THE COURT 0.94$                              837.07$                        838.01$                            
294 PROBATE COURT -$                                1,493.34$                     1,493.34$                         
295 PROBATION/PAROLE -$                                -$                                 
296 PROSECUTING ATTORNEY -$                                236.80$                        236.80$                            
298 FAMILY COUNSELING -$                                -$                              -$                                 
301 SHERIFF 14,599.96$                     2,575.65$                     17,175.61$                       
331 MARINE LAW 230.34$                          18.20$                          248.54$                            
332 SNOWMOBILE ENFORCEMENT -$                                -$                              -$                                 
333 ROAD PATROL -$                                -$                              -$                                 
351 JAIL 24,547.98$                     1,322.91$                     25,870.89$                       

50



426 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 165.91$                          165.91$                            
430 ANIMAL CONTROL 148.91$                          2,538.96$                     2,687.87$                         
442 DRAIN COMMISSIONER -$                                -$                                 
445 DRAINS - PUBLIC BENEFIT -$                                -$                              -$                                 
528 TRANSFER STATION/RECYCLING CENTER 120.45$                          120.45$                            
568 SOIL CONSERVATION -$                                -$                                 
595 AIRPORT 387.51$                          387.51$                            
601 HEALTH DEPARTMENT 1,427.28$                       1,427.28$                         
605 CONTAGIOUS DISEASES -$                                -$                              -$                                 
648 MEDICAL EXAMINER -$                                6,765.00$                     6,765.00$                         
649 COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH -$                                -$                              -$                                 
701 PLANNING COMMISSION -$                                -$                                 
710 MSU EXTENSION -$                                -$                              -$                                 
711 REGISTER OF DEEDS -$                                -$                                 
728 EDC -$                                -$                                 

GENERAL PAYROLL 15 194,710.07$                   -$                              194,710.07$                     
GENERAL FICA 15 14,628.26$                     -$                              14,628.26$                       
GENERAL RETIREMENT 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 
GENERAL FRINGE 15 110,391.52$                   -$                              110,391.52$                     
WORKERS COMP 15 -$                                -$                              -$                                 

GENERAL FUND TOTAL 368,385.65$                   29,161.96$                   397,547.61$                     
GRAND TOTAL 400,758.15$                   36,881.47$                   437,639.62$                     

GENERAL FUND WITHOUT PAYROLL 48,655.80$                     

51


	Cover
	Publice Note/Contents
	Courts and Public Safety Committee
	Minutes
	Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness Grant Program
	Life EMS Ambulance Report

	Finance and Administration
	Minutes
	Administrator's Review of Claims
	Administrator's Report

	Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda
	Minutes
	Claims for Payments




